ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 19, 2011
10: 09 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Joe Paskvan, Co-Chair - via tel econference
Senat or Thomas WAgoner, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil MQiire - via tel econference

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair
Senator Bert Stednman

Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senator Cathy G essel
Senat or Denni s Egan

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 24

"An Act establishing the Sport Fishing Guide Services Board and
licensing requirenents for sport fishing guide-outfitters, sport
fishing outfitters, sport fishing assistant guides, and sport
fishing transporters; making conform ng anendnments; allow ng the
Department of Fish and Ganme to collect information on guiding
services; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
SENATE BI LL NO. 44
"An Act relating to the Southeast State Forest; and providing
for an effective date.”
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 24
SHORT TITLE: SPORT FI SHI NG GUI DI NG SERVI CES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MOGUI RE

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- February 19, 2011



01/19/11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

01/19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 11 (S) RES, FIN

02/ 07/ 11 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 07/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 07/ 11 (S) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 19/ 11 (S) RES AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 44
SHORT TI TLE: SOUTHEAST STATE FOREST
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

01/19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 11 (S) RES, FIN

02/ 07/ 11 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 07/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 07/ 11 (S) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 19/ 11 (S) RES AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SONNY PETERSEN, Menber

Kat mai Service Providers

Kodi ak, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 24 in its
current form

ANDREW COUCH, representing hinself

Mat anuska Susitna Val l ey, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed the establishnment of a Sport Fishing
Qui de Services Board addressed in SB 24.

MELVI N GROVE, President

Prince WIIliam Sound Charter Boat Associ ation

Prince WIIliam Sound, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 24.

STEVE RUNYAN, representing hinself
Wasi |l a, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed strong concern about SB 24.

MELI SSA BORTON, Travel Adm nistrator

Native Village of Afognak

Kodi ak, AK,

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 24.

REUBEN HANKE, sport fishing and big gane hunting guide

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 19, 2011



Kenai, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that it is inportant to take a
step back and look into the issues addressed in SB 24 sone nore.

ANDREW CESSNE, upper Kenai River guide
Kenai, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 24.

Rl CKY GEASE, Executive Director

Kenai River Sports Fishing Association (KRSA)

Sol dot na, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 24.

KEVI N DELANEY, Fisheries Consultant

Kenai River Sports Fishing Association (KRSA)

Sol dot na, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conmented on SB 24 and noted that further
assessnments of the sports fishing industry are needed.

DENI SE MAY, owner and operator

Whal e Pass Lodge

Port Lions, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns about SB 24.

JACK CADI GAN, Owner and Captain

Adventures in Al aska

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed strong concerns about SB 24 in its
current form

BOB MAY, Owner and Operator

Whal e Pass Lodge

Port Lions, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concern about SB 24.

NANCI MORRI S-LYON, Managi ng Partner

Al aska Sportsnen Bear Trail Lodge

Ki ng Sal non, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 24.

ALAN LEMASTER, representing hinself
Gakona, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns about SB 24.

M KE SCOTT, representing hinself

Cordova, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 24.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 19, 2011



SCOTIT EGGEMEYER, Owner,

Al aska Bear Paw Drifters

Sol dot na, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 24.

DENNI S RANDA, Owner

Randa' s CGui de Service

Kasi | of, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concern about SB 24.

DAVI D GOGE A, Presi dent

Kenai River CQuide Association

Sol dot na, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 24.

JERRY STRI EBY, Vice President

Kenai Ri ver Professional Guide Association

Sol dot na, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 24.

CHACO PEARMAN, Owner

Pristine Charters

Kodi ak, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the
Sport Fishing Guide Services Board in SB 24.

REED MORI SKY, representing hinself
Fai r banks, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 24.

DENNI S PETRE, charter operator
Fai r banks, AK

concept

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 24.

M KE MCCRURY, representing hinself
Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 24.

WADE W LLIS, former owner of a fish guiding business

Anchor age, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Stated concern on the Sport
Servi ces board addressed in SB 24.

CHRI' S BRANHAM representing hinself
Anchor age, AK

of

t he

Fi shing Cuide

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 24.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4-

February 19, 2011



CHRI' S ZWOLI NSKI, hunting gui de
Fai r banks, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 24.

STAN MALCOM Presi dent

Pet ersburg Charter Boat Associ ation

Pet ersburg, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 24.

JOEL HANSOQN, Captain

The Boat Conpany

Sitka, AK

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Expressed concern that sonme types of
busi nesses are not being fairly represented within SB 24.

WADE ZAMM T, President and CEO

Seal aska Ti nber Corporation

Ket chi kan, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 44 on behal f of
Ron Wbl fe.

JEREMY MAXAND, representing hinself
Wangel |, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conment ed on SB 44.

CARL PORTMAN, Deputy Director

Resour ce Devel opnent Council (RDC)

Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 44.

ONEN GRAHAM Secretary

Al aska Forest Association

Ket chi kan, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 44.

ELAI NE PRI CE, Project Manager

City Council

Cof f man Cove, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 44.

M KE SALLEE, owner and operator of a small saw m ||
Ket chi kan, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 44.

PAUL MCI NTCSH, representing hinself
Anchor age, AK

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 19, 2011



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 44.

ERI C LEE, representing hinself
Pet er sburg, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed strong concern about SB 44.

JOSEPH SEBASTI AN, conmerci al fishernman
Pet ersburg, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed strong concern about SB 44.

SHELLY WRI GHT, Executive Director

Sout heast Conference

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 44.

LI NDSAY KETCHAL, Executive Director

Sout heast Al aska Conservation Council (SEACC)
Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concern about SB 44.

FRED MORI NO, representing hinself
Juneau, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 44.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

10: 09: 20 AM

CO CHAIR THOVAS WAGONER called the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 10:09 a.m Present at the call to
order was Co-Chair \Wagoner.

10: 10: 13 AM
At ease from10:10 a.m to 10:23 a.m

10: 23: 29 AM
CO CHAI R WAGONER cal | ed the neeting back to order.

10: 24: 16 AM
At ease from10:24 a.m to 10:30 a.m

10: 30: 48 AM
CO CHAI R WAGONER cal | ed the neeting back to order.

SB  24- SPORT FI SH NG GUI DI NG SERVI CES

CO- CHAI R WAGONER announced the consi derati on of SB 24.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 19, 2011



10: 32: 10 AM

SENATOR MCGUI RE, sponsor of SB 24, said this bill was introduced
with an eye towards the resources of the state. Fisheries is one
of the nost inportant resources in Alaska and is divided between
comercial and sport fisheries. She noted that sports fisheries
are conpl ex because they are accessed by Al askans i ndependently,
t hrough guides, and through tourism As tourism in Al aska has
grown there has been a groundswell of fishing guide use. This
has led to increased river pressure, particularly in the Kenai-
Sol dotna area and in Southeast. SB 24 has been brought forward
as a way of extending the guide license program currently in
pl ace. She explained that the bill was originally neant to be an
extension of the bill passed last year [SB 294, passed during
the 26th Alaska State Legislature]. SB 294 had a one-year
sunset, which neans that without a bill, there will no |onger be
a sport fish guide licensing program in Al aska. She explained
that this would have a negative effect on the state for two nain
reasons. First, is the managenent of the resources. She said
that the | ogbook program that has been put into place gives the
Al aska Departnment of Fish and Gane (ADF&S) the necessary data to
track and manage the fisheries stocks. Second, it is a matter of
safety. She explained that it is inportant that guides are
trained to safely care for their guests.

SB 24 originally i ncor por at ed a | ot of t ask force
recommendations, primarily from 2006, which was nmet with a |ot
of negativity from Al askans. She noted that a majority of those
recommendations were wthdrawn and a stripped-down version of
the bill was reintroduced on the Senate floor that strictly
addresses the sunset. She requested that SB 24 go into a task
force over the interim in order to work with the public and
figure out what to do with these controversial recomendati ons.

She asked testifiers to take her statenment into consideration
when making their testinony.

10: 40: 10 AM
CO- CHAI R WAGONER opened public testinony.

10: 40: 58 AM

SONNY PETERSEN, Menber, Katmai Service Providers, testified in
opposition of SB 24 in its current form He asked the conmittee
when he could expect to see a new bill and when the task force
would neet. He explained that SB 24, in its current form is
entirely unworkable for sport fishing operations and would not
allow any of the outfits to operate. The lodges in western

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- February 19, 2011



Al aska have a good reputation and there is no need to have these
types of Ilicensing requirenments. He suggested that if these
requirenents are necessary in other parts of the state as
Senator McQuire indicated, then these individuals should cone up
with sonething for their specific area.

CO- CHAIR WAGONER noted that he is looking at the nonth of
Cctober, when guides are not as busy, for the task force
nmeetings and hearings. He said that the conposition of the task
force has not been fornul ated yet.

10: 45: 53 AM

ANDREW COUCH, representing hinself, opposed the establishnment of
a Sport Fishing Guide Services Board. He explained that the
current guide licensing program nmakes it difficult to hire
gui des who neet the requirenents and limt the nunber of |oca

Al askans that he can hire. He explained that the changes in the
program have only produced nore required paperwork and cost him
nore noney. In regards to safety, these requirenents are already
required for Coast CGuard licensing. He stressed that SB 24 would
add cost to the industry and the state. He noted that
i ndividuals who can't afford the higher charter costs may not
participate and wll reduce the charter business. He asked
whet her there has been any support from individuals in the
i ndustry.

10: 50: 14 AM

MELVIN GROVE, President, Prince WIIliam Sound Charter Boat
Associ ati on, strongly opposed SB 24. He said that the
association's primary concern is that a real problem has not
been identified. For exanple, it has been clainmed that there is
a "groundswell of guides”™ in the sports fishing industry.
However, the current data from ADF&G shows that the nunber of
gui des has been steadily dropping over the last few years. He
stressed that sonme benefits need to be included within the bil
for the industry, such as increased fishing allocations and
stat e sponsored narketing incentives.

10: 54: 52 AM

STEVE RUNYAN, representing hinself, expressed strong concern
about SB 24. He said state governnents everywhere are scranbling
for ways to trim costs and keep within the budget and this bil
creates another |evel of bureaucracy. The costs of SB 24 are
numerous and the benefits, financially, are low He stressed
that the problem statenent and the benefit statement to this
bill are highly overblown. He explained that having government
oversi ght beyond what is already contained in the sports guide

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 19, 2011



licensing book is not necessary or cost effective. He suggested
that the issue of the sunset for sport fishing |icenses could
easily be addressed by holding an up-down vote in the Senate on
the current guidebook system The Senate's energy would be
better used by |ooking at the statew de Chinook sal non shortage,
particularly in the Matanuska-Susitna Vall ey.

10: 58: 40 AM

MELI SSA BORTON, Travel Adm nistrator, Native Village of Afognak,
testified in opposition of SB 24. She said that she had the
opportunity to sit in on the task force neetings that took place
in preparation for this bill. She said that during these
nmeetings she felt that the rural comunities were not being
represented. Further, the discussions were centered on the
conflicts occurring in the Kenai area and were not necessarily
applicable to Kodiak. She recognized how quickly the sports
fishing industry has growmn and that there is abuse that takes
pl ace throughout the industry. However, enacting |egislation
such as SB 24, which affects the regions differently, should
require a nore extensive public process. She said that this was
mssing in the process leading up to this bill. She noted that
the one community neeting held in Kodiak had overwhel m ng
opposition to SB 24.

11: 00: 31 AM

REUBEN HANKE, sport fishing and big gane hunting guide, agreed
with Senator McGQuire that it is a good idea to take a step back
and ook into the issues addressed in SB 24 sonme nore. He noted
that he was a nenber of the original task force. He said that

this bill identifies the people who provide sport fishing
activities, which the current Ilicensing system does not do.
There are many individuals in the state that provide services to
the sport fishing industry and this bill wuld help in

under standi ng the size and scope of the sport fishing industry.

11: 02: 42 AM

ANDREW CESSNE, upper Kenai River guide, testified in support of
SB 24. He explained that, for him mking a living on this
resource is a privilege, not a right.

11: 03: 34 AM

RI CKY GEASE, Executive Director, Kenai R ver Sports Fishing
Association (KRSA), testified in support of SB 24. He said that
KRSA agrees with the problem statenent regarding the sports
fishing industry. He explained that there is no common voice for
the industry in the Al askan governnmental process, nor are there
et hical standards for conduct of business, safety, or service.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 19, 2011



He noted that many people do neet the requirenents, but not
everybody does and this tarnishes the state's sport fishing
reputation. He added that KRSA al so supports SB 24 going into a
subconmi ttee process and extending the |ogbook sunset during
this tine.

11: 05: 38 AM

KEVI N DELANEY, Fisheries Consultant, Kenai River Sports Fishing
Associ ation (KRSA), comented on SB 24 and noted that further
assessment of the sports fishing industry is needed. He said
that the guide registry program was inplenmented during the tine
that he was the director of Sports Fishing at ADF&G He
explained that it was never ADF&G s intent that the guide
registry program would be the end-all in this process. During
this tinme the division recognized the trenmendous econom c val ue
of the industry and wanted to assure that it would continue to
conpete on a world-wide basis. He explained that t he
regi stration process has evolved into the |icensing programthat
is in place now and he has been supportive of this. However, the
framework in place today doesn't adequately allow for assessnent
of who is involved in the field today, he said. He stressed the
i nportance of continuing to pursue these principals.

11: 09: 19 AM

DENI SE MAY, owner and operator, Wale Pass Lodge, expressed
concerns about SB 24. She said her greatest concern is that
rural communities and villages around the state need to be
i ncluded by giving adequate notice on the issue and having the
opportunity for input and comrent. She noted her appreciation
for Senator McCGuire in taking a step back on the bill to allow
individuals time to gather information and understand what the
| egislature is trying to acconplish.

11:12: 20 AM

JACK CADI GAN, Omner and Captain, Adventures in Al aska, expressed
strong concerns about SB 24 in its current form He said he does
not want a duplicate a set of regulations where 1licensing
requi renents already exist, along with the associated costs. M.
Cadigan listed a nunber of the requirenents already in place for
sports fishing guides. He said that nobst charter operations far
exceed the basic level of conpetency needed. He wurged the
commttee to anmend SB 24 so that it solely addresses the areas
in the state where problens m ght exist.

11:17:19 AM
BOB MAY, Owner and Operator, Wale Pass Lodge, expressed concern
about SB 24. He said that at the public neeting in Kodiak

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- February 19, 2011



regarding this bill, not one was in favor it. He noted that the
bill states that an individual nust be 18 years old before they
"can take a fish off the hook." However, his kids |earned |ong
before this age to do nore than that. He said that there is a

ot that has been excluded from this bill. He acknow edged t hat
there have been issues on the Kenai Peninsula; but these
probl ens don't exi st in Kodi ak. He added that nor e
representation is needed in Alaska's villages. He asked when a
new bill wll be brought forward in replace of SB 24 and how the
public notice will be adm nistered to businesses.

CO CHAIR WAGONER said that when hearings on SB 24 begin again
during the interim he will be inforned.

11:21: 14 AM

NANCI MORRI S-LYON, Managi ng Partner, Al aska Sportsnen Bear Trail
Lodge, testified in support of SB 24. She said she was a nenber
of the original task force involved in this bill. She explained
that the sport fishing industry has grown beyond belief and
future gromh needs to be controlled in order to protect and
preserve the state' fisheries and maintain an industry that is
conpetitive and healthy. She acknow edged the uni que chall enges
found in various areas of the state and it is inportant not to
i npose unnecessary restrictions in areas where they are not
needed. A bill in this formwuld give credibility to the sports
fishing industry and would stabilize the industry for the
future. She said that this bill wll assist ADF&G through the
docunentation of the commercial aspects of the industry and its
effects on fisheries throughout the state.

11: 25:13 AM

ALAN LEMASTER, representing hinself, expressed concerns about SB
24. He noted that he was not aware of the task force while it
was going forward. He explained that he can see a great
advantage in having a [Sport Fishing Guide Services] board
because it wll give them solidarity between the industry and
the Board of Fisheries neetings. He noted that in the Copper
River Valley the growh patterns in the industry have decreased,
not increased. He said that his concerns with the current bil
include the following: the assistant guide age limt of 18;
confusi on between what a guide, guide outfitter, and transporter
is; and the organization of ADF&G in regards to the |og books.

He said "I don't think the guide systemis broken in the state
and | don't think we [should] fix it until it is."
11: 29: 24 AM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- February 19, 2011



M KE SCOTT, representing hinmself, testified in opposition of SB
24. He said that the entire state does not have to be wapped up
in this licensing issue and there are already nunerous hoops to
junp through. He said that if this bill goes through the sports
fishing industry wll have a limted entry simlar to halibut
and comrerci al fishing.

11: 30: 57 AM

SCOTT EGGEMEYER, Omer, Alaska Bear Paw Drifters, testified in
support of SB 24. He said he guides in Prince WIIliam Sound, the
Kenai and Kasil of Rivers, Steep Creek, and Anchor Point.

11: 31: 27 AM

DENNI S RANDA, Owner, Randa's CQuide Service, expressed concern
about SB 24. He said that orderly developnment is inportant and
legislation that disrupts this is unwise. He added that he is
al so concerned wth the age restriction on assistant guides. He
noted that legislation is needed due to the gromh of the sports
fishing industry.

11: 33: 43 AM

DAVID GOGA A, Pr esi dent, Kenai Ri ver GQui de  Associ ati on,
testified in support of SB 24. He noted that the association was
present throughout the task force's and ADF&G s neetings. He
acknow edged that there are sone things that need to be worked
out in regards to the bill and a special task force wll be
positive. He said that the bill will increase the accountability
for all people in the sports fishing industry.

11: 35:16 AM

JERRY STRI EBY, Vice President, Kenai River Professional Guide
Association, testified in support of SB 24. He stressed the
i nportance of having representation and a voice for the sports
fishing industry, such as a guide board. Currently, the voice of
the industry is through individuals and this does not go very
far.

11: 37: 06 AM

CHACO PEARMAN, Owmner, Pristine Charters, testified in support of
the concept of the Sport Fishing Quide Services Board in SB 24.
He noted that with the federal program restrictions and the
hal i but charter people are going to change their Dbusiness
nodel s. For instance, clients that stay at bed and breakfasts
are going to be able go out fishing and the fish caught will not
be reported. He said that there have been issues in Kodiak in
the past with businesses that are not accounted for and are
unenforceable. His concern is for the resource. He noted that it

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- February 19, 2011



is inportant that this bill capture everyone involved in the
i ndustry so that the resource can be managed properly.

11:40: 19 AM

REED MORI SKY, representing hinself, testified in support of SB
24. He said he was a nenber of the original task force, which
codified a sport fishing board. The board would categorize and
pr of essi onal i ze sport fishing gui des, outfitters, and
transporters. He agreed that there were several groups who
shoul d have been included earlier; however, this could be taken
up with the resource commttee task force during the interim He

acknowl edged that the bill is long and there are sone
m sunder st andi ngs that can be overcone with nore information. SB
24 wll ensure the continued viability of the sport fishing

i ndustry and provi de a nmechani sm for sustainable grow h.

11: 42: 54 AM

DENNI S PETRE, charter operator, testified in opposition of SB
24. He suggested going to the NOAA [National GOceanic and
At nrospheric Admnistration] website that |ists operators that
received limted entry permts and contact these individuals to
get nore input.

11: 43: 54 AM

M KE MCCRURY, representing hinmself, comented on SB 24. He said
the source of debate comes from ADF&G s policy in selling an
unlimted anmount of fishing licenses to non-residents. He noted

that the value of non-commercial users goes well beyond the
econonmi c interests of guides. Preserving Al askan's opportunities
will only be achieved when ADF&G |imts, where necessary, the

sale of fishing |icenses to non-residents.

11:45: 47 AM

WADE WLLIS, forner owner of a fish guiding business, stated
concern for the Sport Fishing Guide Services Board addressed in
SB 24. He said that that the board is nothing nore than a carbon
copy of the mistakes that have been nade with the Big Gane
Commerci al Services Board. Self-serving boards do not acconplish
anyt hing, but rather decrease the stability of the industry, he
sai d. | mport ant i ndustries t hr oughout Al aska rely on
occupat i onal licensing to provide stability and ~career
opportunities and it does not have to be a burden. Al aska has a
responsibility to ensure that tourism as the state's nost
i mportant renewable resource, is the best it can be. He stressed
the inportance of [|ooking beyond two years, in order to make
sure that for the next 50 years Alaska has a guiding industry

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- February 19, 2011



t hat respects the resource, the industry, and provides
stability.

CO CHAI R WAGONER said that he respects M. WIIlis' perspective.

11:49: 08 AM

CHRI S BRANHAM representing hinself, testified in opposition of
SB 24. He said he has been addressing these issues for the past
30 years and this bill is neritless and doesn't benefit anyone.
He explained that the issue can be resolved by putting
restrictions and limtations on the people who use the resource.
The sports fishing industry has never been given legitimte
responsibility by the state of Alaska and he stressed the
i nportance of the industry. However, the state does nothing to
support it. He said that this is the responsibility of ADF&G
The constitution gives first priority to subsistence use, the
second use is commercial, and the third use is recreational. He
stressed the need to enhance the sports fishing industry.

11:52: 29 AM

CHRI'S ZWOLI NSKI, hunting guide, testified in support of SB 24.
He said that it is inportant to regulate the resource now in
order to prevent damage in the future. He suggested that nore
public foruns are needed.

11:54: 20 AM

STAN MALCOV] Petersburg Charter Boat Association, testified in
support of SB 24. He noted that he was a nenber of the origina

task force which generated the information |leading up to SB 24.

He expl ained that the association has always supported the guide
license requirements and the |og book program A professional

service board is in the best long terminterest of the industry,

the state, and all fisheries resource wusers. The bill, in
enconpassi ng the non-guided sector, which is continuing to grow
i n Sout heast Al aska and is a huge resource user, would be a huge
step forward. The Sport Fishing Guide Services Board would
pronote some self-regulation fromwi thin the industry.

11:57: 08 AM
CO-CHAIR WAGONER announced the conclusion of teleconference
t esti nony.

11:57: 26 AM

JOEL HANSQN, Captain, The Boat Conpany, expressed concern that
sone types of businesses are not being fairly represented within
SB 24. He said the conpany has been operating in Southeast
Al aska for 30 years. While they do not focus specifically on

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- February 19, 2011



sport fishing it is a critical conponent of their business. He
said that the sport fishing industry has a wde variety of
nodel s both on salt and fresh water and the bill needs to be
expanded to include a | arger group of concerned i ndividuals.

12:01: 00 PM
CO CHAI R WAGONER cl osed public testinmony on SB 24. [The bill was
held in commttee.]

12: 01: 14 PM
At ease from12:01 p.m to 12:06 p. m

12: 06: 55 PM
CO CHAI R WAGONER cal | ed the neeting back to order at 12:06 p.m

SB  44- SOUTHEAST STATE FOREST

CO- CHAI R WAGONER announced the consi derati on of SB 44.

12:07: 14 PM

WADE ZAMM T, President and CEO Seal aska Tinber Corporation,
testified in support of SB 44 on behalf of Ron Wlfe. He said
that there is an expected decline in the popul ation of Southeast
Alaska and this is mrrored in the health of the tinber
industry. He explained that Seal aska believes that the tinber
industry is essential to the -econony of Southeast Al aska.
Currently, a vast mpjority of the Southeast region is owned by
the federal governnent; with 87 percent of the area set aside as
par ks, wi | der nesses, nat i onal nonunent s and ot her
classifications that preclude developnent. Devel opnent that
occurs on the remaining land nust achieve resource protection
t hrough various federal regulatory conpliances. SB 44 wll help
stabilize the tinber fromstate |lands and allow state forests to
be managed in a sustainable fashion. These lands will be nmanaged
in accordance with the Alaska Forest Resources and Practices
Act, which has denonstrated to be working well to protect water
gquality, anadronous fish habitats, and wildlife. He noted that
his testinony has also been submtted to the commttee for ful
di scl osure.

12:10: 03 PM

JEREMY MAXAND, representing hinself, comented on SB 44. He
expressed concern that the vast mmjority of tinber harvested
from the Wangell Island would be round |log exported to the
| ower 48 or another country for val ue-added processing. He said
that he wants to see the trees in the state forest directly
benefit the communities they were taken from and are inpacting.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 15- February 19, 2011



Currently, by using the forest within a multi-use category the
community benefits from forest recreation and habitat. However
if these forests transfer to state forests and are immediately

shi pped out of the state there will be no incentive for Wangel
to revitalize their tinber econonmy for long term usage. He said
that he hopes SB 44, as it noves forward, wll contain sone very

strong | anguage which would create incentives to keep the |ogs
in Alaska to be processed and used | ocally.

CO CHAIR WAGONER asked if there is any effort in the community
to start a business which could use the tinber instead of
exporting it.

MR. MAXAND replied that there is a ten-year proposed Tongass

sale that the conmunity of Wangell is looking into. He said
that they are concerned these trees will be cut down too fast.
W angel | has a unique opportunity because there is mll site in

exi stence and, with the logs on the island, could be sustained
for a long tinme. However, if the incentive is to have a large
conpany cone in, cut the trees down, and ship the logs out, then
that is what will happen. He asked what the state is doing to
hel p communities have a sustainable tinber operation. He noted
that the comunity would love to help and support |egislation
focused on that issue.

12: 14: 46 PM

CARL PORTMAN, Deputy Director, Resource Developnment Counci
(RDC), testified in support of SB 44. He explained that
expanding the forest would help sustain the forest products
i ndustry, save jobs, and help the econony. The state |and
identified for inclusion into the new state forest has been
consi stently managed for tinber harvesting. Designation of these
forests would ensure that they would remain in state ownership
and support the forest products industry long-term in Southeast
Al aska. He noted that a majority of tinber in Southeast Al aska
is on federal |and; however federal tinber sales have sharply
declined. Mich of the new state forest contains young second-
growh stands and there is broad support for shifting tinber
harvesting in Southeast Al aska fromold growh to second grow h.
The new state forest and proposed additional partials will help
provide a sustainable tinber supply to |ocal mlls and
accelerate the transition to second-growth tinber. He noted that
95 percent of the Tongass National Forest is closed to |ogging.
The Tongass itself conprises about 94 percent of the |and base
in Southeast Alaska. He explained that as a result |and
managenent in Southeast Al aska is weighted towards conservation
and non-devel opnent uses. Under the ~current Tongass Land

SENATE RES COW TTEE -16- February 19, 2011



Managenent plan the annual harvest ceiling has been reduced from
527 mllion board feet to 267 mllion. He noted that only 30
mllion board feet of tinber has been harvested annually in
recent years, which is less than 15 percent of the allowable
cut.

He explained that in regards to state land the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources (DNR) manages over 159,000 acres of wuplands in
sout hern Sout heast Alaska. O this |and, approximately one-third
would be in the state forest if SB 44 is enacted. He noted that
the remaining land is designated to other uses such as
recreation, water sources, and | and sal es.

12:19: 06 PM

ONEN GRAHAM Secretary, Al aska Forest Association, testified in
support of SB 44. He said that thus far Ketchikan has |ost 85
percent of their enploynent in the tinber industry, due to a
| ack of tinber supply. This piece of legislation will help with
this and they encourage any additions to the tinber sales
program in the future. He noted that the association encourages
| ocal manufacture and the best way to do so is by having enough
timber supply to sustain the mlls. Mst of the wood that the
state has sold in the last five years has been donestically
processed. However, he explained that the state needs to hang on
to log exports as a tool to nmanage their prograns if the |oca

or donestic market is not doing well.

12:21:49 PM

ELAINE PRICE, Project Manager, City Council, testified in
support of SB 44. She said that part of the state forest
expansion would be in Coffman Cove and wll provide a

sust ai nabl e base for tinber managenent. She agreed with M.
Maxand that these forests should be locally beneficial by being
manufactured locally. Because of the way the Tongass National
Forest is currently being managed it is not dependable and every
tinmber sale has a law suit filed against it. She noted that the
Viking MII currently enploys 45 people directly in Kl awock and
is a huge econom c benefit to Prince of Wales Island as a whol e.

12:23: 43 PM

M KE SALLEE, Owner and operator of a small saw mll, testified
in opposition of SB 44. He said one of the parcels proposed in
this bill is North Gavina which lies adjacent to his famly's

homest ead. He explained that the |ogging of Mental Health Trust
Land on other parts of Gavina has trashed nunerous areas and
severely limts passage through them He said that converting
parcels to state forest in order to realize the return on future

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- February 19, 2011



investments in thinning is not justified. The anount of
previously logged lands in the North Gavina parcel consists of
a very few steeply sloped areas in one snall corner of the
parcel. He noted that another distressing aspect of SB 44 is the
contingent practice of round-log export. He explained that as a
m ||l operator he gets nunerous requests for yellow cedar and he
finds it egregious that Alaska "allows the continued bleeding
away of wood-processing jobs with round |log exports.” He said
that SB 44, in its current form primarily benefits a few |large
scal e ti nber operators.

12:27: 01 PM

PAUL MCI NTOSH, representing hinself, testified in support of SB
44. He explained that he lived in Southeast Al aska from 1978 to
2001 and witnessed the closure of the pulp mlls in Sitka and
Ketchi kan. The mmjority of the land in Southeast Alaska is
federal land and one-third of the Tongass National Forest 1is
congressionally designated wlderness. He stressed that there
are no federal acres in Southeast Alaska that are permanently
designated for sustainable, science-based, and |ong-term tinber
managenent. He questioned how a forest product business could
even consider this tinber supply reliable or economcal for
pur poses of business planning. He urged the commttee's support
of SB 44.

12: 30: 01 PM

ERIC LEE, representing hinself, expressed strong concern about
SB 44. He said that the tinber industry clains that round |og
export can create jobs and there is very little noney to be nmade
in the donestic market. However, round log export is only
valuable in the short-term it is not sustainable. He explained
that when the trees are gone, the |ogging conpanies |eave and
the jobs are gone. He said that on the other hand |ocal val ue-
added processing creates jobs that are sustainable, stay in the
community, add to the local econony, and concern the forest for
subsi stence uses. The notion that round |og export is good for
the local economies is a nyth. SB 44 is about gaining access to
tinmber that can be exported in the round because the |laws on
such exporting on federal |ands are nuch nore stringent than on
state | and.

12: 33: 40 PM

JOSEPH SEBASTI AN, commrercial fisherman, expressed strong concern
on SB 44. He said that the real problem is that there is no
future in logging and exporting cathedral cedar trees. He
explained that the majority of sales will be exported. These are
trees that are 400 to 600 years old and are irreplaceable. He

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 19, 2011



noted that the w de distance between the proposed partials wll
make it expensive and difficult to admnister. He said that
"what were once federal deficit tinber sales will now be state
deficit tinber sales.”

12: 37: 43 PM
CO CHAI R WAGONER cl osed on-1line testinony.

12: 37: 50 PM

SHELLY  WRI GHT, Executive Director, Sout heast Conf er ence,
testified in support of SB 44. She said that the communities in
Sout heast Alaska are struggling to survive and part of the
struggle is a lack of jobs. She explained that there used to be
a tinber industry in Southeast that supported comunities and
gave financial support for schools and infrastructure. She said
that she has been told that the tinber industry is "a thing of
the past."™ However, an article in the Juneau Enpire just
recently stated that the Alaska State Retirenent Fund officials
are looking to invest in the tinber industry in the | ower 48.

She explained that the state forest will be a smll way to
stabilize investnents in the future for comunities. The
exi stence of a tinmber industry in Southeast Al aska depends on
i medi ate action in order to provide a supply of economcally
viable sales. She stressed that there are 17 mllion acres in
the Tongass National Forest and SB 44 will secure 48,472 acres
for tinber harvest managenent by the Division of Forestry. This
is a small anmount of land in the big picture, but it could go a
long way in maintaining the stability of Southeast Al aska's
people. She urged the commttee to support the expansion of the
Al aska State Forest through SB 44 and stressed the inportance of
opening the Tongass National Forest up to responsible resource
devel opnent .

12:41: 55 PM

L1 NDSAY KETCHAL, Executive Di rector, Sout heast Al aska
Conservation Council (SEACC), expressed concern about SB 44. She
said she serves on the Tongass Futures Round Table and descri bed
di scussions they had about how to maintain a viable tinber
i ndustry. She recognized that part of SB 44 is an attenpt to
hel p sustain sonme of this existing industry, such as "ma and pa
busi nesses,” lcy Straits, and Viking MII. However, the
| ocations of sone of the proposed parcels do not nmake sense in
regards to the location of these mlls. The question that needs
to be addressed is: "how are we going to develop and sustain a
sust ai nabl e wood product industry in Southeast?" She said that,
ultimately, in order to tackle this issue it should be done

SENATE RES COW TTEE -19- February 19, 2011



conprehensively and not in snmall pieces. The way that these
parcels are aligned the tinmber will nost likely be exported and
will not go to small mlls. She explained that there's a |ot of
opportunity to create work in Southeast forests. She noted that
the Forest Service did announce that they are transitioning out
of old growh forests. She explained that the reason behind this
is that old gromh forests hold inportant ecol ogi cal val ues. She
said that she believes that a small old growh industry can be
maintained as well as the existing mlls. This piece of
legislation will not solve this issue. She said "many of us
woul d prefer to work conprehensively at this.”

COCHAIR WAGONER asked why the transition to working
conprehensively has not occurred yet. He said that this is a
very small armount of tinber and is a nethod to save jobs that
currently exist in Al aska.

M5. CATCHALL replied that the distance of the parcel |ocations
needs to be anal yzed. She explained that SEACC was involved with
the Kake comunity forest planning process in order to aid the
comunity in deciding what it wanted its | andscape to be and how
to create jobs. She stressed that it is inportant to focus on a
comuni ty-by-comunity |evel, enpower their voices, and continue
with the Round Table and other gatherings. She explained that
the reduction in the tinber industry has been so severe that the
industry is in shock. It is difficult to then turn around and
accept a smaller and nore agile business nethod. She said that
when she speaks with new entrepreneurs in the tinber industry
such as Larry Jackson in Ketchikan, she sees them wanting to be
creative. She stressed that jobs in the woods are inportant for
everyone.

12: 47: 46 PM

FRED MORINO, representing hinself, testified in support of SB
44, He said he has been involved in financing in the tinber
industry since 1970. He explained that the United States Forest
Service has 27 billion board feet of harvestable old growth
tinmber. He noted that Alaska has not even harvested 100 mllion
board feet of tinber yet. He said that "the state of Alaska is
the tinber industry in Southeast Al aska now' and the state has
the responsibility to develop this tinber for enploynment in
Sout heast .

12: 50: 44 PM
CO CHAI R WAGONER cl osed public testinmony. [The bill was held in
comittee.]

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 20- February 19, 2011



There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Co- Chair Wagoner adjourned the neeting at 12:50 p. m

SENATE RES COW TTEE -21- February 19, 2011



